Public Document Pack

O) Brent

General Purposes Committee

Monday 13 September 2021 at 9.30 am
Conference Hall - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
Wembley, HA9 OFJ

Please note that this meeting will be held as a socially distanced physical meeting
with all members of the Committee therefore required to attend in person.

Guidance on the safe delivery of face-to-face meetings is included at the end of the
agenda front sheet but if your attendance should cause any difficulties then please
contact the meeting administrator (listed below).

Due to current restrictions and limits on the socially distanced venue capacity,
any members of the press and public wishing to attend this meeting are
encouraged to do so via the live webcast. The link to attend the meeting is
available HERE

Membership:

Members Substitute Members
Councillors: Councillors:

M Butt (Chair) Afzal, S Choudhary, Dixon, Kabir, Knight, Southwood
McLennan (Vice-Chair) and Stephens

Colwill

Farah Councillors:

Nerva i
M Patel Kansagra and Maurice
Krupa Sheth

Tatler

For further information contact: Rashella Rapley, Governance Officer
Tel: 07436 704 037 / Email: rashella.rapley@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the
minutes of this meeting have been published visit:
democracy.brent.gov.uk

Cvrecycle

for Brent



https://brent.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business,
they must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes
apparent and must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must
declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public
interest and either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after
disclosing the interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating
in discussion of the item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions
or give evidence relating to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the
meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

(@) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on
for profit gain.

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in
carrying out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the
Councillors or their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the
council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.

)] Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the
Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.

(@)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of
business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of
any one class of its issued share capital.

**Personal Interests:

The business relates to or affects:

(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management,
and:

To which you are appointed by the council;

which exercises functions of a public nature;

which is directed is to charitable purposes;

whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a

political party of trade union).

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least
£50 as a member in the municipal year;

or
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-
being or financial position of:
e You yourself;
e a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal
interest.



Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

Item Page
1 Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members

2 Declarations of interests

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they
relate.

3 Deputations (if any)

To hear any deputations received from members of the public in
accordance with Standing Order 67.

4 Minutes of the previous meeting 1-4

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 24 May
2021 as a correct record.

5 Matters arising (if any)

To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous
meeting.

6  Stopping Up Order - Granville Road. (Peel Precinct Site). 5-36

This report seeks authorisation to make a Stopping Up Order for two
areas of public highway that lie to the north and west of Granville Road
and to the south of Princess Road, within the South Kilburn Estate for a
phased development (Peel Precinct).

Ward Affected: Contact Officer: Nicolaas Potgieter, Team
Kilburn Leader, Traffic Orders

Tel: 020 8937 5542

Email: Nicolaas.potgieter@brent.gov.uk

3


mailto:Nicolaas.potgieter@brent.gov.uk

7  Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies 37 -38

To consider and confirm the appointment recommended to membership
of the Pension Board.

8 Exclusion of Press and Public

There are currently no items listed on the agenda that will require the
exclusion of the press and public.

9  Any other urgent business

Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to
the Head of Executive and Member Services or her representative before
the meeting in accordance with Standing Order 60.

Date of the next scheduled meeting: Monday 6 December 2021 at 9:30am

Guidance on the delivery of safe meetings at The Drum, Brent Civic Centre

o We have revised the capacities and floor plans for event spaces to ensure
they are Covid-19 compliant and meet the current social distancing
guidelines.

o Attendees will need to maintain the necessary social distancing at all times.

o Signage and reminders, including floor markers for social distancing and
one-way flow systems are present throughout The Drum and need to be
followed.

o Please note the Civic Centre visitor lifts will have reduced capacity to help
with social distancing.

o The use of face coverings is encouraged with hand sanitiser dispensers
located at the main entrance to The Drum and within each meeting room.

o Those attending meetings are asked to scan the coronavirus NHS QR code
for The Drum upon entry. Posters of the QR code are located in front of the
main Drum entrance and outside each boardroom.

o Although not required, should anyone attending wish to do book a lateral
flow test in advance these are also available at the Civic Centre and can be
booked via the following link:
https://lwww.brent.gov.uk/yourcommunity/coronavirus/covid-19-testing/if-
you-dont-have-symptoms/




Agenda Item 4

cH
J

Brent

LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
Held in the Conference Hall, Brent Civic Centre on Monday 24 May 2021 at
9.30 am

PRESENT: Councillor M Butt (Chair), Councillor McLennan (Vice-Chair) and Councillors
Nerva, M Patel, Krupa Sheth, Tatler and Kansagra

1. Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members

Apologies for absence received from Councillor Colwill with Councillor Kansagra in
attendance as a substitute member.

2. Declarations of interests

There were no declarations of interests made by Members.
3. Deputations (if any)

There were no deputations received.
4. Minutes of the previous meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 15 March
2021 be approved as an accurate record.

5. Matters arising (if any)
There were no matters arising.

6. Political Balance Review
Councillor Butt, Leader of the Council, introduced the report, which followed the
review undertaken at the Annual Council meeting on 29 April 2021 in relation to
the representation of political groups on main committees and subsequent
appointments made to those bodies.
It was noted that the Committee was now required to review and determine the
representation of political groups on its Sub-committees as set out in the report
and then make appointments giving effect to the wishes of the political groups’
allocated seats.

Having considered the report it was RESOLVED to approve:

(1) The size of each Sub-committee to be appointed by the Committee as
detailed in the report.

Page 1



(2) The allocation of seats to political groups on each of the Sub-committees in
accordance with political balance rules.

(3) The appointments of Chairs, Vice-Chairs, Members and Substitutes
Members to each Sub-committee.

7. Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies
Following on from Item 6 above, Councillor Butt introduced the item which set out
the proposed appointments to the General Purposes Sub-committees for the
2021/2022 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED: That Members agree the following appointments to the General
Purposes Sub-Committees for the 2021/2022 Municipal Year:

GENERAL PURPOSES SUB-COMMITTEES

SENIOR STAFF APPOINTMENTS SUB-COMMITTEE

M BUTT (C) LABOUR
MCLENNAN (VC) LABOUR
KANSAGRA CONSERVATIVE
KRUPA SHETH LABOUR
TATLER LABOUR

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS:

LABOUR: FARAH, KNIGHT, NERVA, M PATEL, STEPHENS, SOUTHWOOD
CONSERVATIVE: COLWILL, MAURICE

SENIOR STAFF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE

M BUTT (C) LABOUR
MCLENNAN (VC) LABOUR
KANSAGRA CONSERVATIVE
NERVA LABOUR
KRUPA SHETH LABOUR

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS:

LABOUR: FARAH, KNIGHT, M PATEL, SOUTHWOOD
CONSERVATIVE: COLWILL, MAURICE

BRENT PENSION FUND SUB-COMMITTEE

CHOUDHARY (C) LABOUR
ADEN (VC) LABOUR
DALY LABOUR
DONNELLY-JACKSON LABOUR
KANSAGRA CONSERVATIVE
MITCHELL-MURRAY LABOUR
PERRIN LABOUR

CO-OPTED NON-VOTING:

2
General Purposes Committee - 24 May 2021  Page 2



ELIZABETH BANKOLE (UNISON)

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS:

LABOUR: CHOUDRY, MCLEISH, NAHEERATHAN & VACANCY
CONSERVATIVE: COLWILL, MAURICE

BRENT PENSION BOARD
FULL MEMBERS:

DAVID EWART (C) INDEPENDENT CHAIR

CRANE LABOUR

KABIR LABOUR

CHRIS BALA PENSION SCHEME MEMBER

BOLA GEORGE TRADE UNION (UNISON) MEMBER

ROBERT WHEELER TRADE UNION (GMB) MEMBER

VACANCY EMPLOYER MEMBER (NON-BRENT
COUNCIL)

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS:

No provision is include within the Boards Terms of Reference for substitute
members.

8. Exclusion of Press and Public
There were no items that required the exclusion of the press or public.
9. Any other urgent business

None.
The meeting closed at 9:35am

COUNCILLOR M BUTT
Chair

3
General Purposes Committee - 24 May 2021  Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

o)
J

Brent

General Purposes Committee
13 September 2021

Report from the Strategic Director
Regeneration and Environment

Stopping Up Order — Granville Road (Peel Precinct Site)

Wards Affected:

Kilburn

Key or Non-Key Decision:

Non Key Decision

Open or Part/Fully Exempt:

(If exempt, please highlight relevant paragraph Open
of Part 1, Schedule 12A of 1972 Local
Government Act)
One
No. of Appendices: Appendix A -  Draft Stopping Up Order with notice

and plan

Background Papers:

Planning Decision Notice Approval Application No.
19/3259

Contact Officer(s):

(Name, Title, Contact Details)

Nicolaas Potgieter, Team Leader, Traffic Orders
nicolaas.potgieter@brent.gov.uk
020 8937 5542

Karen DeJesus - Senior Project Manager, Estate
Regeneration

Karen.DeJesus@brent.gov.uk

020 937 2004

1.0 Purpose of the Report

1.1  This report seeks authorisation to make a Stopping Up Order for two areas of
public highway that lie to the north and west of Granville Road and to the south
of Princess Road, within the South Kilburn Estate for a phased development

(Peel Precinct).

1.2  The Stopping Up Order is required under Section 247 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (TCPA 1990) to complete the development at the site, which
consists of the demolition of building number two Canterbury Road, numbers
one to seven and fifteen to thirty-three Peel Precinct and numbers eight to

Page 5



mailto:nicolaas.potgieter@brent.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.DeJesus@brent.gov.uk

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

fourteen Neville Close and erection of seven buildings, associated landscaping,
highways and public realm improvements (including new public space and
market square), private open space, associated car parking, cycle parking and
servicing provision.

Recommendation

That members note that the draft Stopping Up Order has been advertised in
accordance with the requirements of Section 247 TCPA 1990 and that in
response to the consultation, eleven consultees have informed the Council that
they have either no objections or no record of apparatus in the immediate
vicinity of our enquiry.

That members note that all the responses received during the statutory
consultation have been considered and resolved by the appointed consultants
and the Estate Regeneration Team.

That the Committee approve the making of the Stopping Up Order (SUO) and
that a notice of making be advertised.

Detalil

Planning consent was granted for the development of the site following the
Planning Committee meeting of 11 September 2019 under planning application
19/3259.

The planning applications included the erection of seven buildings (A to G)
ranging between five and 16 storeys, plus part basement, comprising private
sale residential units (Use Class C3), shared ownership residential units (Use
Class C3), social rented residential units (Use Class C3); new health centre
(Use Class D1), new gym (Use Class D2), flexible use class within retail and
commercial units (Use Class A1/A3/B1l) at ground floor, associated
landscaping, highways and public realm improvements (including a new public
space and market square), private open space, associated car parking, cycle
parking and a servicing provision.

This phased development within the South Kilburn Estate will provide a mixture
of housing, retail, health and commercial uses within the seven blocks with an
increase in on-site affordable housing and additional commercial space.

The Phase 1 has already received planning permission, which delivered block

E. The current Stopping Up Order refers to blocks A, B, C, D, F and G. The
proposed unit type and tenure mix are demonstrated in the table below:

Page 6



Fropos=d Unit Type & Tenure Summany

[ Privase Shared Own  Social Rent Total |
Block ABC
Studio 18 3 21
1829 17 20 37
2B4P 32 10 42
Total &7 33 a 100
Black D
1828 30 3 33
2839 ] 2 11
2B4P 13 13 26
@58 33 3 36
Total z5 1B 3 106
Block FG
1829 13 16 29
2839 0
2B4P 6 1B 24
3E59 10 1 11
Total 23 34 1 A

A draft SUO was duly prepared and a notice of proposal was advertised under
Section 247 TCPA 1990 that would enable the redevelopment to take place. A
copy of the draft Order is attached at Appendix A, together with the notice and
relevant plan showing the proposed area to be stopped up. The notice of
proposal was advertised on 1st July 2021 in the Brent and Kilburn Times and
the London Gazette allowing for a 28-day statutory consultation period.

Statutory consultees, namely utility companies and Transport for London (TfL),
were notified of the proposed Stopping-Up Order by e-mail or hard copy
correspondence.

The Council received eleven responses during the statutory consultation
period. The replies stated that they had either no objections or no record of
apparatus in the immediate vicinity of our enquiry. This correspondence was
from:

Atkins Global
Cadent / National Grid
ESP Utilities Group Ltd
GTC /BU-UK
Instalcom Ltd

Page 7



3.8

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

London Underground / DLR Infrastructure Protection
Network Rail - Asset Protection Anglia

Network Rail - Asset Protection LNW South
Openreach BT

Plant Enquiries TfL

Turner & Townsend

Members are now requested to approve the making of the Stopping Up Order
in order to proceed with the development.

Financial Implications

The Stopping Up Order is estimated to cost approximately £5,000 and will be
funded by the developer partner.

There are no other financial implications on the Council’s revenue budgets.
Legal Implications

Section 247 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (TCPA 1990) permits
the making of an order for the stopping up of a highway necessary to enable
development to be carried in accordance with a valid planning permission.

Officers have taken the Council’s legal advice in relation to the promotion of the
Stopping Up Order. If it is agreed to make the Order a notice of making of the
Order will be publicised. It will not be open to further objection by the public or
other authorities.

Equality Implications

The public sector equality duty, as set out in section 149 of the Equalities Act
2010, requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have “due regard”
to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited under the Act, and to advance equality of opportunity and
foster good relations between those who have a “protected characteristic” and
those who do not share that protected characteristic. The protected
characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual
orientation.

This includes enquiring into whether and how a proposed decision
disproportionately affects people with a protected characteristic and the need
to consider taking steps to meet the needs of persons who share a protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it.
This includes removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons who
share a protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic. For
example, taking account of disabled persons’ disabilities and the action that
could be taken to help a disabled person.

There are no equality implications associated with this development or the
approval of this Stopping Up Order.

Page 8



7.0 Consultation with Ward Members and Stakeholders

7.1  Statutory consultees, namely various utility companies and TfL were consulted
on the proposed Stopping-Up Order by e-mail and correspondence, as required
under TCPA 1990.

7.2  Local ward Councillors were also consulted.

8.0 Human Resources/Property Implications (if appropriate)

8.1  None specific

Report sign off:

Alan Lunt
Strategic Director of Regeneration
and Environment

Page 9



LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

SECTION 247 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT (STOPPING UP OF HIGHWAYS) (NO. ) ORDER 202"

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of Brent
propose to make an order under Section 247 and 253 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
{(“The Act”) as amended by Section 270 and Schedule 22 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999
to authorise the stopping up of an area of public highway described in Schedule 1 to this notice.

2. If the order is made, the stopping up will be authorised only in order to enable the development
described in Schedule 2 to this notice to be carried out in accordance with the planning permission
granted under Part 1l of the Act by the London Borough of Brent as the Local Planning Authority on
16th February 2021 under Application No. 19/3259.

3. A copy of the draft order and of a plan of the relevant area can be inspected and a copy requested
free of charge during normal office hours on Mondays to Fridays inclusive until the expiration of a
period of 28 days from the 1st July 2021 at Brent Customer Services, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers
Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFJ. Please note: - that we are unable to provide access to the
council offices while coronavirus (COVID 19) social distancing measures are in place and the
documents have been made available for inspection at hitps://consultation.brent.gov.uk/highways-

and-infrastructure/peel-stopping-up-t0-23-029-np. Alternatively, those without internet access can
receive a copy of the documents by post by phoning 0208 937 5600.

4. Persons desiring to object to the making of the proposed order should send a statement in writing
of their objection and the grounds thereof, to the Head of Highways and Infrastructure, Highways
Infrastructure Services, 5th Floor North Wing, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley,
Middlesex, HAS9 O0FJ, or via email fo frafficordersi@brent.gov.uk, quoting the reference
TO/23/029/NF within the period of 28 days from the 1st July 2021.

5. In preparing an objection it should be borne in mind that the substance of it may be imparied to other
persons who may be affected by it and that those persons may wish to communicate with the
objector about it.

Dated 1st July 2021.

Tony Kennedy
Head of Highways and Infrastructure

SCHEDULE 1

The area of public highway to be stopped up is shown hatched black on the Deposited Plan and comprises
of two parts bounded by Granville Road to the south and east, Princess Road to the north. The major part is
irregular shaped with starting grid reference E544076.8790, N112172.6476 moving in a southerly direction
to grid reference E544076 9167, N112149.8860 and then westerly to grid reference E544060.4479
N112150.5698 with a maximum length of 22 800 metres and width of 16.496 metres. The second part is
irregular shaped with starting grid reference E544076 8773, N112173.7015 and ending grid reference
E544076.8578, N112185.4907 with a maximum length of 11.790 metres and width of 3.979 metres.

Page 10



SCHEDULE 2

A phased development for the demolition of 2 Canterbury Road, 1-7 and 15-33 Peel Precinct and 8-14 Neville
Close, and erection of seven buildings (A to G) ranging between 5 and 16 storeys, plus part basement,
comprising private sale residential units (Use Class C3), shared ownership residential units (Use Class C3),
social rented residential units (Use Class C3); new health centre (Use Class D1), new gym (Use Class D2),
flexible use class within retail and commercial units (Use Class A1/A3/B1) at ground floor, associated
landscaping, highways and public realm improvements (including new public space and market square),
private open space, associated car parking, cycle parking and servicing provision and subject to Deed of
Agreement dated 15/02/2021 under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

Page 11



Notes -

1. Thiz drawing i= to be read n confncion with al
reievant Archiect's, Engneer’s and speciaists’
and specticatons.

2 ‘paper or cigtal
form. Use writen dimensions anly. To check at this

2hould be SImm kg @ A1 of 25mm kng @ A3
o —

3. Heatna Safety:
Al pectic arawing notes are to De read I conncion
WEA the project Information Pack” and “Ste Rules”.

Adapted Highwsy

V2700 wosomese

2T obed

S

H

{

E 544076.8578
e 1121864907

L)
i

- E: 544078.8773
N 1121737015

5440765790
N 1121726476

- E:5es07e 0167
N 1121498260

7 [sm2f Py | e8| imsued tor inormation
¢ [sa2| po | 28 [ Eock =0 First Floor imyout aces
- s [sea] wa | e8| imsues tor intormation
4 [ucax| wa | g8 | imsued for itormation
3 [eeas| Py | 28 | imsued for intormaton
2 [wnef Py | e8| imsued tor intormation
1 [ene] Py | ke | izsues tor imormaton
o Eng | Amenament

PEEL PROJECT, 8-14
NEVILLE CLOSE, KILBURN

TO BE STOPPED-UP

Sows
FOR INFORMATION

INOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
Orzwn PJ Eng K3
Scaes 1250atA1 15003t A3
Drawing No Ver
27461-700 7

PRICE&MYERS A ©

Consulting Er

37 Alfred Pace London

WC1E 70°

T 0207631 5128 F 0207452 1390
E




Appendix A — Draft Stopping Up Order with notice and plan.

Brent

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF BERENT (STOPPING UP OF HIGHWAYS) (NO. *) ORDER 202"

Made * 202"

THIS ORDER is made by the Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of Brent (“The
Council”) acting in its capacity as a local highway authority and in exercise of its powers under
Section 247 and 253 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“the Act”) as amended by
Section 270 and Schedule 22 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999 and of all other powers
enabling it in that behalf.

BY THIS ORDER:

1. The Council authorises the stopping up of an area of public highway described in
Schedule 1 to this order and shown hatched black on the Deposited Plan (“the
Highway”), in order to enable development described in Schedule 2 to this order to
be carned out in accordance with the planning permission granted under Part [ll of
the Act by the Council on 15th February 2021 under Application No. 19/3259_ (“the
Development™).

2. Where immediately before the date of this order there is any apparatus of statutory
undertakers under, in, on, over, along or across any area of the highway authorised
to be stopped up pursuant to this order then, subject to section 261(4) of the Act,
those undertakers shall have the same rights as respects that apparatus after that
area of the highway Is stopped up as they had immediately beforehand.

3. In this order "the Deposited Plan" means the plan attached to this order and
deposited in the offices of Highways Infrastructure, 5th Floor North Wing, Brent Civic
Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS9 OFJ under Drawing No. 27461-
700.

4. This order shall come into force on the date on which notice that it has been made
is first published in accordance with section 252(10) of the Act, and be cited as The
London Borough of Brent (Stopping Up Of Highways) (No. *) Order 202*.

SCHEDULE 1
Description of Highway to be Stopped Up

The area of public highway to be stopped up is shown hatched black on the Deposited Plan and comprises
of two parts bounded by Granville Road to the south and east, Princess Road to the north. The major part
is irregular shaped with starting grid reference E544076.8790, N112172.6476 moving in a southerly
direction to grid reference E544076.9167, N112149.8860 and then westerly to gnd reference
E544060.4479, N112150.5698 with a maximum length of 22 800 metres and width of 16.496 metres. The
second part is irregular shaped with starting grid reference E544076 8773, N112173.7015 and ending grid
reference E544076.8578, N112185.4907 with a maximum length of 11.790 metres and width of 3.979
metres.

Page 13



SCHEDULE 2
The Development

A phased development for the demolition of 2 Canterbury Road, 1-7 and 15-33 Peel Precinct and 8-14
Neville Close, and erection of seven buildings (A to G) ranging between 5 and 16 storeys, plus part
basement, comprising private sale residential units (Use Class C3), shared ownership residential units
(Use Class C3), social rented residential units (Use Class C3); new health centre (Use Class D1), new
gym (Use Class D2), flexible use class within retail and commercial units (Use Class A1/A3/B1) at ground
floor, associated landscaping, highways and public realm improvements (including new public space and
market square), private open space, associated car parking, cycle parking and servicing provision and
subject to Deed of Agreement dated 15/02/2021 under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, as amended.

The Common Seal of THE MAYOR AND )
BURGESSES OF THE LONDON BOROUGH )
OF BRENT was hereunto affixed in the )
presence of: )

Solicitor

Page 14



LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

SECTION 247 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT (STOPPING UP OF HIGHWAYS) (NO. ) ORDER 202"

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of Brent
propose to make an order under Section 247 and 253 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
{(“The Act”) as amended by Section 270 and Schedule 22 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999
to authorise the stopping up of an area of public highway described in Schedule 1 to this notice.

2. If the order is made, the stopping up will be authorised only in order to enable the development
described in Schedule 2 to this notice to be carried out in accordance with the planning permission
granted under Part 1l of the Act by the London Borough of Brent as the Local Planning Authority on
16th February 2021 under Application No. 19/3259.

3. A copy of the draft order and of a plan of the relevant area can be inspected and a copy requested
free of charge during normal office hours on Mondays to Fridays inclusive until the expiration of a
period of 28 days from the 1st July 2021 at Brent Customer Services, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers
Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFJ. Please note: - that we are unable to provide access to the
council offices while coronavirus (COVID 19) social distancing measures are in place and the
documents have been made available for inspection at hitps://consultation.brent.gov.uk/highways-

and-infrastructure/peel-stopping-up-t0-23-029-np. Alternatively, those without internet access can
receive a copy of the documents by post by phoning 0208 937 5600.

4. Persons desiring to object to the making of the proposed order should send a statement in writing
of their objection and the grounds thereof, to the Head of Highways and Infrastructure, Highways
Infrastructure Services, 5th Floor North Wing, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley,
Middlesex, HAS9 O0FJ, or via email fo frafficordersi@brent.gov.uk, quoting the reference
TO/23/029/NF within the period of 28 days from the 1st July 2021.

5. In preparing an objection it should be borne in mind that the substance of it may be imparied to other
persons who may be affected by it and that those persons may wish to communicate with the
objector about it.

Dated 1st July 2021.

Tony Kennedy
Head of Highways and Infrastructure

SCHEDULE 1

The area of public highway to be stopped up is shown hatched black on the Deposited Plan and comprises
of two parts bounded by Granville Road to the south and east, Princess Road to the north. The major part is
irregular shaped with starting grid reference E544076.8790, N112172.6476 moving in a southerly direction
to grid reference E544076 9167, N112149.8860 and then westerly to grid reference E544060.4479
N112150.5698 with a maximum length of 22 800 metres and width of 16.496 metres. The second part is
irregular shaped with starting grid reference E544076 8773, N112173.7015 and ending grid reference
E544076.8578, N112185.4907 with a maximum length of 11.790 metres and width of 3.979 metres.

Page 15



SCHEDULE 2

A phased development for the demolition of 2 Canterbury Road, 1-7 and 15-33 Peel Precinct and 8-14 Neville
Close, and erection of seven buildings (A to G) ranging between 5 and 16 storeys, plus part basement,
comprising private sale residential units (Use Class C3), shared ownership residential units (Use Class C3),
social rented residential units (Use Class C3); new health centre (Use Class D1), new gym (Use Class D2),
flexible use class within retail and commercial units (Use Class A1/A3/B1) at ground floor, associated
landscaping, highways and public realm improvements (including new public space and market square),
private open space, associated car parking, cycle parking and servicing provision and subject to Deed of
Agreement dated 15/02/2021 under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended.

Page 16



Notes -

1. Thiz drawing i= to be read n confncion with al
reievant Archiect's, Engneer’s and speciaists’
and specticatons.

2 ‘paper or cigtal
form. Use writen dimensions anly. To check at this

2hould be SImm kg @ A1 of 25mm kng @ A3
o —

3. Heatna Safety:
Al pectic arawing notes are to De read I conncion
WEA the project Information Pack” and “Ste Rules”.

Adapted Highwsy

V2700 wosomese

/T obed

S

H

{

E 544076.8578
e 1121864907

L)
i

- E: 544078.8773
N 1121737015

5440765790
N 1121726476

- E:5es07e 0167
N 1121498260

7 [sm2f Py | e8| imsued tor inormation
¢ [sa2| po | 28 [ Eock =0 First Floor imyout aces
- s [sea] wa | e8| imsues tor intormation
4 [ucax| wa | g8 | imsued for itormation
3 [eeas| Py | 28 | imsued for intormaton
2 [wnef Py | e8| imsued tor intormation
1 [ene] Py | ke | izsues tor imormaton
o Eng | Amenament

PEEL PROJECT, 8-14
NEVILLE CLOSE, KILBURN

TO BE STOPPED-UP

Sows
FOR INFORMATION

INOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
Orzwn PJ Eng K3
Scaes 1250atA1 15003t A3
Drawing No Ver
27461-700 7

PRICE&MYERS A ©

Consulting Er

37 Alfred Pace London

WC1E 70°

T 0207631 5128 F 0207452 1390
E




This page is intentionally left blank



BRENT COUNCIL

‘ -D,’ B re n t TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (as

amended)

DECISION NOTICE — APPROVAL

Application No: 19/3259
To: Mr Laurence Brooker
Turley
8th Floor, Lacon House
84 Theobalds Road
WC1X 8NL

| refer to your application dated 11/09/2019 proposing the following:

Full planning application for a phased development for the demolition of 2 Canterbury Road, 1-7 and 15-33
Peel Precinct and 8-14 Neville Close, and erection of seven buildings (A to G) ranging between 5 and 16
storeys, plus part basement, comprising private sale residential units (Use Class C3), shared ownership
residential units (Use Class C3), social rented residential units (Use Class C3); new health centre (Use Class
D1), new gym (Use Class D2), flexible use class within retail and commercial units (Use Class A1/A3/B1) at
ground floor, associated landscaping, highways and public realm improvements (including new public space
and market square), private open space, associated car parking, cycle parking and servicing provision and
subject to a Deed of Agreement dated 15/02/2021 under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, as amended

and accompanied by plans or documents listed here:
See Condition 4

at Peel Precinct, 97-112 Carlton House, Canterbury Terrace, 8-14 Neville Close, 2 Canterbury Road &
Peel Site Garages, London, NW6

The Council of the London Borough of Brent, the Local Planning Authority, hereby GRANT permission for the
reasons and subject to the conditions set out on the attached Schedule B.

Date: 15/02/2021 Signature:

Gerry Ansell
Head of Planning and Development Services

Notes

1. Your attention is drawn to Schedule A of this notice which sets out the rights of applicants who are
aggrieved by the decisions of the Local Planning Authority.

2. This decision does not purport to convey any approval or consent which may be required under the

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 1 of 18

Page 19



Building Regulations or under any enactment other than the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

DnStdG

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 2 of 18

Page 20



SCHEDULE ‘A’

Appeals to the Secretary of State

The applicant may appeal to the Secretary of State if he or she is aggrieved by the decision of the local
planning authority in respect of:

(1) Refusal of a planning, Permission in Principle, Technical Details Consent, listed building
consent or conservation area consent application, including refusal to vary or discharge
conditions.

(2) The conditions attached to a planning, Technical Details Consent, listed building consent
or conservation area consent application.

(3) Refusal, partial refusal or deemed refusal of a lawful development certificate.

The correct form must be used to appeal — Planning; Permission in Principle, Householder Planning; Listed
Building Consent; Conservation Area Consent or Certificate of Lawful Use or Development Appeal Forms.
Please specify form required, if requesting from Inspectorate. The time period to do this will vary depending
on the application type or development type. An appeal must be made within the following time periods of the
decision date:

(1) An advertisement application must be made within 8 weeks

(2) A full application, removal or variation of condition for a householder* development must
be made within 12 weeks. (See below for definition of householder)

(3) All other application types or development types must be made within 6 months

However, different timescales apply where the development is also the subject of an enforcement notice. If
an enforcement notice has been served within two years of an application being submitted or is served before
the time period for determining the application has expired, the time limit to appeal is 28 days from date of
refusal or the date of determination. If an enforcement notice is served after the application’s decision date
or date for determination, the time limit is 28 days from the enforcement notice served date, unless this would
extend the period beyond the usual time limit for cases not involving an enforcement notice.

e The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal but he/she will not
normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay.
Appeals must be made on a form obtainable from the Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The
Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or online at www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs.

e The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to him/her that the local planning authority
would not have been able to have granted planning permission for the development or would not have
been able to have granted it without the conditions they imposed, having regard to the statutory
requirements, to the provisions of any development order and to any directions given under a
development order.

e In practise, the Secretary of State does not refuse to consider appeals solely because the local planning
authority based their decision on a direction given by him/her.

Purchase Notices

o |f either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State refuses permission to develop land or grants
it subject to conditions, the owner may claim he can neither put the land to a reasonably beneficial use in
its existing state, nor render the land capable of a reasonably beneficial use, either carrying out any
development which has been or would be permitted.

e |nthese circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on the Council in whose area the land is
situated. This notice will require the Council to purchase his/her interest in the land, in accordance with
the provisions of Part V1 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

*For the purposes of an appeal, a householder development is development in the boundary of, or to an existing dwellinghouse for
purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse, that does not involve change of use or a change to the number of dwellings.
Please note, this does not include development in the boundary of, or to an existing flat or maisonette. This includes "prior approval"

applications for larger household extensions.

FOR OTHER INFORMATION OR ADVICE ON THIS NOTICE PLEASE CONTACT:
Planning and Regeneration Service
Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HA9 OFJ
Telephone: 020 8937 5210

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 3 of 18

Page 21



SCHEDULE "B"

Application No: 19/3259
SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR APPROVAL

1 The proposal is in general accordance with the following:
The National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
Adopted Policy

e The London Plan (2016 — Consolidated with alterations since 2011)
e Brent's Core Strategy (2010)
e Brent's Development Management Policies (2016)

Emerging Policy

e The Publication Version London Plan (2020)
e Brent's Local Plan (Reg 19 Version — 2019)

CONDITIONS

1 The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning on the date of this permission.

Reason: To conform with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

2 No development or phase of development (as set out in condition 5 of this permission) shall be
commenced until an agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(and any other necessary enabling powers) substantially in the form submitted and entitled
"Section 106 Agreement - Engrossment Version" has been entered into by all parties holding an
interest in the land subject to the development or phase of development save for statutory
undertakers and other de minimis interests.

Reason: To ensure that the potential impacts of the development are mitigated and the
identified benefits secured through the obligations set out within the Section 106 legal
agreement.

3 No development of any Phase of the development (other than the first phase) shall be
commenced until a confirmatory deed substantially in the form annexed to the "Section 106
Agreement - Engrossment Version" has been entered into by all parties holding an interest in
the land comprised in that Phase save for statutory undertakers and other de minimis interests
confirming that the land in that Phase is bound by the section 106 agreement entered into under
condition 1 of this planning permission.

Reason: To ensure that the potential impacts of the development are mitigated and the
identified benefits secured through the obligations set out within the Section 106 legal
agreement

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawing(s) and/or document(s):

PSK-CGL-000010 Rev.P1 LOCATION PLAN

PSK-CGL-000011 Rev.P4 SITE PLAN - EXISTING
PSK-CGL-000013 Rev.P3 CONSENTED & PROPOSED PLAN
PSK-CGL-000017 Rev.P- PUBLIC ACCESS PLAN
PSK-CGL-051000 Rev.P15 BLOCK ABC BASMENT PLAN
PSK-CGL-051001 Rev.P20 BLOCK ABC GROUND FLOOR PLAN
PSK-CGL-051002 Rev.P16 BLOCK ABC FIRST FLOOR PLAN

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 4 of 18

Page 22



PSK-CGL-051003 Rev.P17
PSK-CGL-051004 Rev.P16
PSK-CGL-051005 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051006 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051007 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051008 Rev.P16
PSK-CGL-051009 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051010 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051011 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-051012 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-051013 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051014 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051015 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051016 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-051017 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-051018 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-051900 Rev.P10
PSK-CGL-051901 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-051902 Rev.P9
PSK-CGL-051903 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-051904 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-051905 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-051906 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-051907 Rev.P9
PSK-CGL-051908 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-051909 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-051910 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-051911 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-051912 Rev.P9
PSK-CGL-051913 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-051914 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-051915 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052000 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-052000 Rev.P18
PSK-CGL-052001 Rev.P16
PSK-CGL-052002 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-052003 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-052004 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-052005 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-052006 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-052007 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-052008 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-052009 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-052010 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-052011 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-052900 Rev.P9
PSK-CGL-052901 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052902 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052903 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-052904 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052905 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-052906 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052907 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052908 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052909 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052910 Rev.P7
PSK-CGL-052911 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052912 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-052913 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-052914 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052915 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052916 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-052917 Rev.P4

Document Imaged

BLOCK ABC SECOND FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC THIRD FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC FOURTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC FIFTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC SIXTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC SEVENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC EIGHTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC NINTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC TENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC ELEVENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC TWELFTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC THIRTEENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC FOURTEENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC FIFTEENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC SIXTEENTH FLOOR PLAN
BLOCK ABC ROOF PLAN

UNIT TYPE A1.PR - 1B2P - BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE A1.SO - 1B2P - BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE A2.PR - 2B4P BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE B3.PR - 1B2P - BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE B1.PR - 1B2P - BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE B1.SO - 1B2P - BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE B2.PR - 1B2P BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE C2.PR - 1B1P - BLK ABC
UNIT TYPE C1.PR - 1B1P BLOCK ABC

BLOCK ABC UNIT TYPE C2.S0 - 1B1P - BLOCK ABC

UNIT TYPE C3.PR - 1B2P BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE C3.SO - 1B2P BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE C4.PR - 2B4P BLK ABC
UNIT TYPE C4.SO - 2B4P BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE C5.PR - 2B4P BLOCK ABC
UNIT TYPE C5.S0 - 2B4P BLOCK ABC
BLOCK D GA PLAN GROUND FLOOR
BLOCK D GROUND FLOOR

BLOCK D GA PLAN FIRST FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN SECOND FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN THIRD FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN FOURTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN FIFTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN SIXTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN SEVENTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN EIGHTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN NINTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN TENTH FLOOR
BLOCK D GA PLAN ROOF PLAN
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D1.PR - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D2.PR - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D3.PR - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D1.SO - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D4.PR - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D7.PR - 2B3P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D6.PR - 1B2P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D8.PR - 2B3P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D9.PR - 2B3P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D5.PR - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D12.SO - 2B4P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D11.PR - 2B4P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D12.PR - 2B4P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D7.SO - 2B3P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D13.PR - 2B4P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D14.PR - 2B4P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D6.SO - 1B2P
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D10.PR - 3B5P

Page 23

DocFDN
Ref: 19/3259 Page 5 of 18



PSK-CGL-052918 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-052919 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-052920 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052921 Rev.P7
PSK-CGL-052922 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-052923 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052924 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052925 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052926 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052927 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-052928 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-052929 Rev.P2
PSK-CGL-052930 Rev.P1
PSK-CGL-054000 Rev.P23
PSK-CGL-054001 Rev.P18
PSK-CGL-054002 Rev.P17
PSK-CGL-054003 Rev.P16
PSK-CGL-054004 Rev.P17
PSK-CGL-054005 Rev.P17
PSK-CGL-054006 Rev.P18
PSK-CGL-054007 Rev.P16
PSK-CGL-054008 Rev.P16
PSK-CGL-054900 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-054901 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-054902 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-054903 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-054904 Rev.P6
PSK-CGL-054905 Rev.P6
PSK-CGL-054906 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-054907 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-054908 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-054909 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-054910 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-054911 Rev.P9
PSK-CGL-054912 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-054913 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-054914 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-054915 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-054916 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-054917 Rev.P7
PSK-CGL-060000 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-060001 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-060002 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-060003 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-060004 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-061100 Rev.P15
PSK-CGL-061101 Rev.P13
PSK-CGL-061102 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-061103 Rev.P13
PSK-CGL-061200 Rev.P3
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-061201 Rev.P2
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-061202 Rev.P2
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-061203 Rev.P2
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-062001 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-062002 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-062101 Rev.P13
PSK-CGL-062102 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-062103 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-062105 Rev.P12

Document Imaged

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D11.SO - 2B4P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D18.PR - 3B5P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D20.PR - 3B5P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D21.SR - 3B5P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D14.SO - 2B4P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D15.PR - 2B4P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D16.PR - 2B4P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D17.PR - 3B5P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D19.PR - 3B5P

BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D23.SR - 3B5P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D24.PR - 3B5P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D25.PR - 3B5P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK D UNIT TYPE D21.PR - 3B5P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK FG GROUND FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN FIRST FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN SECOND FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN THIRD FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN FOURTH FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN FIFTH FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN SIXTH FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN SEVENTH FLOOR

BLOCK FG GA PLAN ROOF PLAN

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE F1.PR - 1B2P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE F2.PR - 1B2P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE F3.S0 - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE F4.PR - 2B4P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE F5.PR - 3B5P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G1.PR - 1B2P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G1.SO - 1B2P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G2.PR - 1B2P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G2.SO - 1B2P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G3.SO - 1B2P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G4.SO - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G4.PR - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G5.PR - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G5.S0 - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G6.PR - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G6.SO - 2B4P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G7.PR - 3B5P

BLOCK FG UNIT TYPE G8.SR - 3B5P ACCESSIBLE
BLOCK ABC SECTION A-A

BLOCK A SECTION B-B

BLOCK BC SECTION C-C

BLOCK A SECTION D-D

BLOCK BC SECTION E-E & F-F

BLOCK ABC ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION
BLOCK ABC ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION
BLOCK ABC ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION
BLOCK ABC ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION
BLOCK ABC ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION - MATERIAL

BLOCK ABC ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION - MATERIAL

BLOCK ABC ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION - MATERIAL

BLOCK ABC ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION - MATERIAL

BLOCK D SECTION A-A

BLOCK D SECTION B-B

BLOCK D ELEVATION SOUTH WEST ELEVATION
BLOCK D ELEVATION NORTH WEST ELEVATION
BLOCK D ELEVATION NORTH EAST ELEVATION

BLOCK D ELEVATION SOUTH EAST ELEVATION

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 6 of 18

Page 24



PSK-CGL-062201 Rev.P2
MATERIAL PALETTE
PSK-CGL-062202 Rev.P2
MATERIAL PALETTE
PSK-CGL-062203 Rev.P2
MATERIAL PALETTE
PSK-CGL-062204 Rev.P2
PSK-CGL-064001 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-064002 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-064003 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-064010 Rev.P2
PSK-CGL-064100 Rev.P13
SQUARE
PSK-CGL-064101 Rev.P11
SQUARE
PSK-CGL-064102 Rev.P11
PSK-CGL-064103 Rev.P12
PSK-CGL-064104 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-064105 Rev.P14
PSK-CGL-064106 Rev.P13

BLOCK D ELEVATION SOUTH WEST ELEVATION -

BLOCK D ELEVATION NORTH WEST ELEVATION -

BLOCK D ELEVATION NORTH EAST ELEVATION -

BLOCK D SOUTH EAST ELEVATION - MATERIAL PALETTE
BLOCK FG SECTION A-A

BLOCK FG SECTION B-B

BLOCK FG SECTION C-C

FACADE SECTIONS - BUILDING FG

BLOCK FG ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION PUBLIC

BLOCK FG ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION PUBLIC

BLOCK FG ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION

BLOCK FG ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION
BLOCK FG ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION

BLOCK FG ELEVATION NORTH EAST ELEVATION
BLOCK FG ELEVATION NORTH WEST ELEVATION

PSK-CGL-064200 Rev.P5
SQUARE
PSK-CGL-064201 Rev.P3
SQUARE
PSK-CGL-064202 Rev.P3
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-064203 Rev.P3
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-064204 Rev.P3
PALETTE
PSK-CGL-064205 Rev.P5
MATERIAL PALETTE
PSK-CGL-680001 Rev.P9
STRATGEY
PSK-CGL-682000 Rev.P8
STRATEGY

PSK-CGL-684000 Rev.P10

STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-684001 Rev.P9
STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-684002 Rev.P9
STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-684003 Rev.P8
STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-684004 Rev.P9
STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-684005 Rev.P7
STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-684006 Rev.P9
STRATEGY
PSK-CGL-910000 REV.P6
PSK-CGL-920000 Rev.P6
PSK-CGL-930000 REV.P3
PSK-CGL-940000 REV.P5
PSK-CGL-950000 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-961001 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-962002 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-964002 Rev.P4

PSK-CGL-PL0O000 REV.P10

PSK-CGL-PL0001 Rev.P4

PSK-CGL-PL0002 Rev.P13

PSK-CGL-PL0O003 Rev.P7
PSK-CGL-PL0004 Rev.P7

Document Imaged

BLOCK FG ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION PUBLIC
BLOCK FG ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION PUBLIC
BLOCK FG ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION - MATERIAL
BLOCK FG ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION - MATERIAL
BLOCK FG ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION - MATERIAL
BLOCK FG ELEVATION NORTH EAST ELEVATION -
BLOCK ABC PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK D PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED FOURTH FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED FIFTH FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
BLOCK FG PROPOSED SIXTH FLOOR PLAN - FIRE
POSTAL/SERVICING STRATEGY

ACCESS STRATEGY

FIRE STRATEGY

REFUSE STRATEGY

CYCLE STRATEGY

BLOCK ABC AMENITY SCHEDULE

BLOCK D SCHEDULE AMENITY SCHEDULE

BLOCK FG SCHEDULE AMENITY SCHEDULE
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

SITE PLAN GA LOWER GROUND FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-GROUND FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-FIRST FLOOR
SITE PLAN GA-SECOND FLOOR

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 7 of 18

Page 25



PSK-CGL-PL0005 Rev.P8
PSK-CGL-PL0006 Rev.P7
PSK-CGL-PL0007 Rev.P6
PSK-CGL-PL0008 Rev.P7
PSK-CGL-PL0009 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-PL00010 Rev.P6
PSK-CGL-PL0011 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-PL0012 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-PL0013 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-PL0014 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-PL0015 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-PL0016 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-PL0017 Rev.P4
PSK-CGL-PL0018 Rev.P5
PSK-CGL-PL0020 Rev.P3
PSK-CGL-PL0021 Rev.P3
L-100 REV.P08
PLAN

L-110

L-120

View 05A
View 05A
View 05A

AIR QUALITY ASSESSMENT

SITE PLAN GA-THIRD FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-FOURTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-FIFTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-SIXTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-SEVENTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-EIGHTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-NINTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-TENTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-ELEVENTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-TWELTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-THIRTEENTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-FOURTEENTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-FIFTEENTH FLOOR

SITE PLAN GA-SIXTEENTH FLOOR

SITE SECTIONAL ELEVATIONS SHEET 1 OF 2
SITE SECTIONAL ELEVATIONS SHEET 2 OF 2

LANDSCAPE GENERAL ARRANGEMENT PLAN - GROUND FLOOR

LANDSCAPE GA PLAN - ROOF LEVELS
ILLUSTRATIVE LANDSCAPE MASTERPLAN

Block F CGI
Block F CGI Option Without Tree
Block F CGI Option With Tree

BASEMENT CONSTRUCTION METHODOLOGY REPORT

COVER LETTER

DAYLIGHT AND SUNLIGHT REPORT

62482/16/DTO/SMM/CS

DESIGN & ACCESS STATEMENT

DRAWING ISSUE REGISTER

ECONOMIC STATEMENT
ENERGY STRATEGY

FIRE STRATEGY REPORT ISSUE 3

FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT AND SUDS STRATEGY REPORT
GIA COMPARISON SUMMARY

GROUND INVESTIGATION

HERITAGE TOWNSCAPE AND VISUAL IMPACT APPRAISAL
LANDSCAPE DESIGN REPORT

NOISE AND VIBRATION ASSESSMENT

PLANNING STATEMENT

PRELIMINARY ECOLOGICAL APPRAISAL

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES

STRUCTURAL AND CIVIL ENGINEERS REPORT - RIBA STAGE 3
SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

TRANSPORT STATEMENT

TRAVEL PLAN

TREE SURVEY AND CONSTRAINTS PLAN

TREE SURVEY SCHEDULE

UTILITIES STATEMENT

VENTILATION STATEMENT

WIND DESIGN NOTE

OUT-551-D-001 REV.9

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

5 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in the following Phasing Plan unless an
alternative Phasing Plan is approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to this
condition:

(i) Phase 1: Demolition of former Local Authority office unit and 16-24 & 25-33 Peel
Precinct and erection of Block E and associated landscaping, private open space,
associated car parking, cycle parking and servicing provision

(i) Phase 2: Demolition of 1-7 & 15 Peel Precinct and 8-14 Neville Close and erection of
Blocks A, B and C and associated landscaping, highways and public realm

DocFDN

Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 8 of 18

Page 26



10

11

Document Imaged

improvements (including new public space), private open space, associated car
parking, cycle parking and servicing provision

(iii) Phase 3: Demolition of 34-57 Peel Precinct and erection of Blocks F & G and
associated landscaping, private open space, highways and public realm improvements,
cycle parking and servicing provision.

(iv) Phase 4: Demolition of 34-57 Peel Precinct, 97-112 Carlton House and remaining
structures within the application site and erection of Block D and associated
landscaping, private open space, associated car parking, cycle parking and servicing
provision

Reason: In the interests of clarity and proper planning

The development shall provide the 85 shared ownership units and 42 social rented units (Class

C3), as shown on the consented plans, in the following mix:

e Social Rented accommodation: 11 x 1 bedroom, 12 x 2-bedroom, 15 x 3-bedrom and 4 x
4-bedroom;

e  Shared Ownership: 3x studio, 39 x 1-bedroom and 43 x 2-bedroom.

Reason: To ensure an appropriate mix of units having regard to the identified affordable
housing needs of the Borough

The development shall provide 181 private sale units (Class C3), as shown on the consented
plans, in the following mix: 18 x studio, 60x 1-bed, 60x 2-bed, 43x 3-bed.

Reason: To ensure an appropriate mix of units having regard to the identified housing needs of
the Borough.

Not less than 10% of residential units shall be constructed to wheelchair accessible
requirements (Building Regulations M4(3)) and the remainder shall meet easily
accessible/adaptable standards (Building Regulations M4(2)).

Reason: To ensure suitable facilities for disabled users and to future proof homes.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015, or any amending Order, the units identified on Drawing
Nos.PSK-CGL-PL0002 Rev.P13, PSK-CGL-PL0003 Rev.P7, PSK-CGL-051001 Rev.P20,
PSK-CGL-054001 Rev.P18, as “Retail” (including the Pharmacy), and “Flexible Retail” shall only
be used for purposes within Use Classes A1/A3/B1 as defined by the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of residents, to ensure an appropriate array of uses, and in
the interest of ensuring appropriate access and servicing.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or
in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification, the elements of the development permitted for “Medical”
(Use Class D1) and “Gym” (Use Class D2) shall only be used for those purposes respectively
and shall not be used for any other purpose within Use Classes D1 and D2 as defined by the
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that
Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification.

Reason: in order to ensure that the uses have an acceptable impact on residential amenity and
the surrounding highway network

Prior to occupation of the relevant Phase the following shall be constructed and permanently marked
out to serve the relevant Phase:

(i) the approved number of car parking spaces as shown on the approved plans which shall
include the provision of at least 20% active and 20% passive electric vehicle charging points,
and

(ii) provision of disabled parking spaces as shown on the approved plans

Page 27

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 9 of 18



12

13

14

15

Document Imaged

Thereafter the approved parking shall be retained and used solely for the specified purposes in
connection with the Development hereby approved for the lifetime of the Development and shall not
be obstructed or used for any other purpose(s).

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision in accordance with adopted standards

The doors to the Health Centre on the Neville Close facade including entrance doors and refuse storage
doors shall open inwards, unless for fire escape or operational reasons this is not feasible.

Reason: to prevent obstruction of the highway.

Prior to a Material Start on the relevant part of the Development being made, the developer
shall join, and for the period of construction, adhere to the requirements of the Considerate
Constructors Scheme for the relevant part of the Development.

Reason: To ensure that throughout the construction process, appropriate regard is given to
protecting neighbour amenity and the natural environment

(a) Prior to commencement of any works on a Phase, with the exception of works necessary to
facilitate compliance with part (a) of this condition, a Site Investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Site Investigation shall be carried out by
competent persons in accordance with the principles of BS 10175:2011 to determine the nature
and extent of any soil contamination present; include the results of any research and analysis
undertaken as well as an assessment of the risks posed by any identified contamination; and
include an appraisal of remediation options should any contamination be found that presents an
unacceptable risk to any identified receptors

(b) Prior to the commencement of any works on a relevant Phase, with the exception of works
necessary to facilitate compliance with part (b) of this condition and UNLESS the Local Planning
Authority has previously confirmed in discharging part (a) above that no remediation measures
are required, a Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The Remediation Strategy shall specify measures to contain, treat or
remove any soil contamination to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended
residential use; include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and
remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures; ensure that the site
will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

The works shall be carried in accordance with the approved details in accordance with the
approved timetable of works. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written
notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. Any remediation measures
required by part (a) above shall be carried out in full.

(c) Prior to the occupation of the relevant Phase, UNLESS the Local Planning Authority has
previously confirmed in discharging part (a) above that no remediation measures are required, a
Verification Report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The Remediation Verification Report shall demonstrate that the remediation has been carried
out in accordance with the approved Remediation Strategy; and that the relevant Phase is
permitted for its approved end use.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other off site receptors

No works at all including site clearance or demolition shall commence for each Phase of the
development until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for the relevant
Phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
CEMP shall include details of measures to mitigate the impact of the demolition, construction

Page 28

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 10 of 18



16

Document Imaged

and all associated works on noise, vibration and air quality for sensitive receptors including:

(i) Management: Appointment of a Construction Liaison Officer to take primary
responsibility for day-to-day contact on environmental matters for the borough, other external
bodies and the general public.

(i) Working Hours: Standard construction hours (e.g. Monday to Friday 08:00 to 18:00
hours, Saturday 08:00 to 13:00 hours, with no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays);

(iii) Access Routes: Routing construction traffic away from NSRs.

(iv) Equipment: The use of quieter alternative methods, plant and/or equipment, where
reasonably practicable.

(v) Screening: The use of site hoardings, enclosures, portable screens and/or
screening nosier items of plant from NSRs, where reasonably practicable.

(vi) Location: Positioning plant, equipment, site offices, storage areas and worksites
away from NSRs, where reasonably practicable.

(vii) Maintenance: Maintaining and operating all vehicles, plant and equipment in an

appropriate manner, to ensure that extraneous noise from mechanical vibration, creaking and
squeaking is kept to a minimum.

(viii) Pilling: Ensuring that piling is undertaken using most appropriate technique, with
minimal noise and vibration generation in mind. The piling method will be agreed in conjunction
with the LBB, prior to work commencing.

(ix) BS 5228-1 indicates that between 10 and 20dB attenuation may be achieved
during the construction phase by selecting the most appropriate plant and equipment and
enclosing and/or screening noisier items of plant or equipment.

(x) Site Planning: Erect solid barriers to site boundary; no bonfires; machinery and
dust causing activities located away from sensitive receptors; training and management; hard
surface site haul routes.

(xi) Construction Traffic: vehicles to switch off engines; vehicle cleaning and specific
fixed wheel washing on leaving site and damping down of haul routes; all loads entering and
leaving site to be covered; ensure no site runoff of water or mud; all non-road mobile machinery
to be fitted with appropriate exhaust after-treatment; on-road vehicles to comply with the
requirements of a possible future LEZ as a minimum; minimise movement of construction traffic
around site.

(xii) Demolition: use water as dust suppressant; use enclosed chutes and covered
skips; and wrap buildings to be demolished.
(xiii) Site Activities: minimise dust generating activities ensuring that any crushing and

screening machinery is located well within the site boundary; use water as dust suppressant
where applicable; enclose stockpiles or keep them securely sheeted; if applicable, ensure
concrete crusher or concrete batcher has a permit to operate

The development of the relevant Phase shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the
agreed details.

Reason: particular attention must be paid to minimising the noise and air quality impact of the
demolition and construction works on sensitive receptors and to ensure demolition and
construction works follow Best Practicable Means (BPM) of Section 72 of the Control of
Pollution Act 1974 to minimise noise and vibration effects.

Prior to commencement of a Phase, with the exception of site clearance and demolition, further
details of all exterior materials including samples to be provided on site for inspection and/or
manufacturer's literature for the relevant Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include but not be limited to:

0] building envelope materials e.g. bricks, render, cladding;
(i) windows, doors and glazing systems including colour samples; and
(iii) balconies and screens

The works for each Phase shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details for the
relevant Phase and shall be retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development which does not prejudice the amenity of the
locality

Page 29

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 11 of 18



17  Prior to the commencement of above ground works to Blocks A, B, C, F and G further details of
the exterior of the non-residential ground floor frontages shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include but not be limited to:

0] windows, doors, shop fronts and glazing systems including colour samples; and
(i) details of where advertisements would be applied notwithstanding that the
advertisements themselves would require separate advertisement consent

(iii) size and siting of any projecting box signs

(iv) design, siting of any roller shutter (inclusive of the shutter box and guide rails)

At least 50% of the area of the windows on the non-residential frontages shall be kept free from
anything that would obscure views through the window including but not limited to applied
lettering and screens, posters, screens set behind the windows..

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained
thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development which does not prejudice the amenity of the
locality and to ensure the non-residential elements provide an active frontage in the interests of
natural surveillance and the viability and vitality of the area.

18 On commencement of the relevant Phase, further details of the hard and soft landscaping to
serve that Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details shall include (but are not limited to):

0] Walls and fences: Details of proposed walls, fencing and other means of
enclosure indicating materials and heights.

(i) Trees: Details for all new tree planting across the site, with all new trees planted at
a minimum girth of 12-14cm, with sizes to be agreed in writing.

(iii) Planting: Notwithstanding any details of landscape works referred to on the
approved plans, a detailed scheme for the landscape works and treatment of the surroundings
of the proposed development (including species, plant sizes, locations and planting densities).
Any approved planting, turfing or seeding included in such details shall be completed in strict
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the relevant Phase,
or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

(iv) Physical separation: Adequate physical separation, such as protective walls and
fencing, between landscaped and paved areas.

(v) Mounds existing contours and any alteration of the ground levels, such as earth
mounding.

(x) Hard landscaping: Details of all areas of hard landscape works and proposed
materials.

(xi) Cycle parking: Details of all external public cycle parking, including within Peel
public square.

(vi) Signboards and seating: Other appropriate matters within the context of a

landscaping scheme, such as details of signboards, seating, foot ways and other paved
pedestrian and vehicle parking areas. Such details to also include further details of the 'PEEL'
lettering within the public square

(vii) Other details to include: measures to mitigate against adverse wind conditions for
those receptors identified as likely to experience adverse wind conditions in the XCO2, Wind
Design Note (August 2019) .

(viii) A Landscape Management Plan including details of the proposed arrangements for
the maintenance of the landscape works.

Prior to the occupation of the relevant Phase the works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans and shall be retained for the lifetime of the Development.

Any trees and shrubs planted in accordance with the landscaping scheme which, within 5 years
of planting, are removed, dying, seriously damaged or become diseased shall be replaced in
similar positions by trees and shrubs of similar species and size to those originally planted
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 12 of 18

Page 30



19

20

21

22

Document Imaged

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of appearance and setting for the development and
to ensure that the proposed development enhances the visual amenity of the locality in the
interests of the amenities of the occupants of the development and to provide tree planting in
pursuance of section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act

(a) Prior to commencement of any works except site clearance and demolition a site
wide draft children's play space delivery plan shall be submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority; and

(b) Prior to commencement of the relevant Phase detailed children's play space
delivery plans to serve that Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such details shall include:

(i) the location of the play area and/or equipment
(i) details of the equipment and/or earthworks to meet the minimum standards for play

Prior to the occupation of the relevant Phase the works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans and shall be retained for the lifetime of the Development.

Reason: to ensure there is sufficient provision of areas and equipment for childrens' play
On commencement of the relevant Phase, further details of the external lighting to serve that

Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details shall include:

0] highway street lighting;

(i) other public realm lighting;

(iii) communal amenity space including roof garden lighting; and
(iv) car park lighting

Prior to the occupation of the relevant Phase the works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans and shall be retained for the lifetime of the Development.

Reason: These details are required to ensure that public and private spaces are adequately lit
for pedestrian and highway safety and to prevent light pollution.
Prior to commencement of above ground works to Block A further details of the elevations shall

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Prior to the occupation of the relevant Phase the works shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans and shall be retained for the lifetime of the Development.

Reason: to ensure the tall building displays the highest architectural standards
No works to any Phase shall be commenced until a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off

site drainage works for that Phase has been submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority in consultation with the sewerage undertaker. Such a strategy shall include:

(i) adherence to the principles of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems and the
drainage hierarchy set out in London Plan policy 5.13; and
(i) all on or off site drainage works

No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the public system until
the drainage works for the relevant Phase referred to in the strategy have been completed
details of the drainage strategy and shall be retained for the lifetime of the Development.

Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient capacity is

made available to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid adverse environmental
impact upon the community and to ensure the development meets the requirements of London

Page 31

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 13 of 18



23

24

25

26

Document Imaged

Plan Policy 5.13

Prior to the installation of any mechanical plant within the relevant Phase further details of such
mechanical plant, including but not limited to refrigeration, air-conditioning, ventilation system,
air source heat pumps, combined heat and power units and kitchen extraction systems, to serve
that Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details shall include:

0] detail the particulars and or specification of noise levels, vibration and where
relevant odour control of each item of mechanical plant;

(i) details of any ducting in terms of its appearance and siting;

(iii) demonstrate that the individual and cumulative predicted noise levels from any

mechanical plant together with any associated ducting, shall be 10 dB(A) or greater below the
typical background noise level (LA90) during the time of plant operation at 1 m from the nearest
on and off-site NSR: the method of assessment should be carried out in accordance with
BS4142:20147 'Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial
areas'; and

(iv) include a scheme of mitigation in the event the predicted noise levels of the plant
exceed the criteria in part (ii)

(v) include a scheme of mitigation in the event the predicted vibration levels of the
plant exceed acceptable norms

(vi) include a scheme of mitigation in the event the predicted odour levels of the plant
exceed acceptable norms

The approved mechanical plant shall be installed in accordance with the approved details and
maintained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To ensure that users of the surrounding area do not suffer a loss of amenity by reason
of noise, vibration and odour nuisance

Prior to occupation of the relevant Phase a report which demonstrates that air quality mitigation
measures have been complied with for that Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include evidence that the mitigation
measures set out in the approved Air Quality Assessment (XCO2 December 2019) relating to
that Phase have been fully implemented and shall be retained for the lifetime of the
Development.

Reason: To ensure the safe development and secure occupancy of the site for residential use
within the Air Quality Management Area.

Prior to the occupation of any non-residential Use hereby approved further details of the hours
of operation for the relevant Use shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The relevant Use shall operate in accordance with the approved hours of
operation for that Use for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: in the interests of the amenity of local residents
0] Prior to the occupation of the relevant Phase a Delivery and Servicing Plan (DSP)
to serve that Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning

Authority.

On occupation of the relevant Phase the approved DSP shall be implemented in full and shall
be adhered to for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed use does not prejudice the enjoyment by neighbouring

occupiers of their properties and to ensure that deliveries and servicing are planned to minimise
their impact on the local highway network.

Page 32

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 14 of 18



27

28

29

30

31

Document Imaged

Prior to first occupation of a relevant Phase hereby approved, confirmation from the Building
Control body to demonstrate that the relevant building has been designed so that mains water
consumption does not exceed a target of 105 litres or less per person per day for the residential
elements within the relevant Phase and for the non-residential elements, water meters and leak
detection systems, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To promote water conservation and efficiency measures in all new developments in
accordance with policy 5.15 of the London Plan, and DMP9b of the Development Management
Policies

The Combined Heat and Power (CHP) unit installed shall meet or improve upon the emissions
standards and technical details described in the Air Quality Impact Assessment (XCO2
December 2019). Prior to the commencement of the use of the CHP unit details of tests
undertaken on the installed unit to demonstrate that the emissions standards have been met
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CHP unit
shall thereafter be maintained in such a way as to ensure that these standards continue to be
met.

Reason: To protect local air quality.

No piling shall take place on a Phase until a piling method statement for the relevant Phase
(detailing the depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such
piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage
to subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any
piling for the relevant Phase must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved
piling method statement.

Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground water utility
infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local underground water utility infrastructure.

Prior to a material start on the relevant Phase of the development, including 'preparatory works',
further details of tree protection shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such details shall include the locations and the means of protection for each
Phase of development (in accordance with BS5837:2012) of existing trees on site or in close
proximity to the site identified for retention, including detailed proposed protection measures
during any demolition or construction works to include locations of all protective fencing, ground
protection, site facilities and storage areas. Where, for construction purposes, it is necessary to
position tree protection fencing within the RPA of retained trees, suitable ground protection will
be installed to prevent undue soil/root compaction from pedestrian and/or vehicular traffic.

No works shall be carried out on a relevant Phase until the tree protection for that Phase is
installed in accordance with the approved details and is retained for the duration of those works
to that Phase.

Furthermore, all trees within the approved details that are identified for retention as part of this
development that fall into irreversible decline and/or die as a result of non-adherence to the
approved protection measures within a period not to exceed five years from completion of works
shall be replaced with a tree of size and species to be agreed with the Local Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance and setting for the proposed development, to
ensure that the proposed development enhances the visual amenity of the locality in the
interests of the amenities of the occupants of the development and, ensure that it enhances the
visual amenity of the area and to protect trees in the immediate environment and to retain a
mature tree cover around the site in accordance with s.197 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of above ground superstructure works for each Phase, but

Page 33

DocFDN

Ref: 19/3259 Page 15 of 18



excluding demolition, details for the provision of a communal television system/satellite dish for
the relevant Phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall only be undertaken in accordance with the approved detail.

Reason: In order to mitigate the possibility of numerous satellite dishes being installed on the
development hereby approved in the interests of the visual appearance of the development, in
particular, and the locality in general.

32 Prior to first use of the Market Square, details for the operational management of the Market
Square shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
Operational Management Plan shall contain details of:

(a) A site supervisor/supervision of the market stalls, controls and responsibilities
(b) Litter control measures

(c) Refuse plans, facilities locations and collection arrangements

(d) Hours of operation - set up/opening

(e) Noise control measures

() Stall holder parking

The development shall only be undertaken in accordance with the approved details unless the
prior written consent has first been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of residents and in the interest of highway safety.

33 A Prior to commencement of above ground works on a Phase (excluding site
clearance or demolition works), details of the design, number and siting of bat bricks/tiles and
bird bricks/tubes/boxes designed into and around the new building(s) shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.

B. The bricks/tiles/tubes/boxes shall only be fitted under the supervision of a suitably
qualified ecologist and confirmation of installation prior to first occupation of the relevant part of
the development in accordance with the agreed Phasing Plan together with accompanying
photographic evidence shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To enhance the ecological value of the site.

34  Prior to the commencement of works on the relevant Phase (inclusive of site clearance and
demolition), emergence surveys in accordance with the recommendations contained on page
30 of the Preliminary Ecological Survey (June 2019) shall be undertaken and reported on in
accordance with the Bat Conservation Trust's "Bat Surveys for Professional Ecologists: Good
Practice Guidelines 3rd edition"

Reason: The buildings and tree identified for removal have the potential to support roosting bats
and to ensure that the Council fulfils its duties under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations.

35 Prior to the commencement of works on the relevant Phase (inclusive of site clearance and
demolition), a Methodology Statement for the eradication of invasive species shall be submitted
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The Methodology shall include details of
timescales for eradication, and, where the invasive plant species have not been eradicated at
the time of commencement of works on the relevant Phase, details of the measures to be put in
place to ensure that works do not cause its spread.

Reason: To ensure that biodiversity is not adversely affected by the proposed development
through the spread of invasive species such as Japanese knotweed, cotoneaster, false acacia,
buddleia, cherry laurel, or any other species listed on the London Invasive Species Initiative
(LISI), or on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981 as amended).

36  Prior to commencement of development of the relevant phase/building (as applicable) (except
for demolition and site clearance) hereby approved, a BREEAM pre-assessment relating to all

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 16 of 18

Page 34



non-residential floor space within the development, which targets a rating of 'excellent', or an
alternative rating to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the Development is designed and constructed to improve environmental
performance and adapt to the effects of climate change over time.

37  Within the first 6 months of occupation of the commercial floorspace within each building (as
applicable), a Post Construction Stage Review BRE Certificate shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The certificate shall demonstrate that the
commercial floor space within the development has achieved BREEAM "Excellent" unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Development shall be
maintained so that it continues to comply for the lifetime of the Development.

Reason: To ensure the Development is designed and constructed to improve environmental
performance and adapt to the effects of climate change over time.

INFORMATIVES

1 The applicant is advised that this development is liable to pay the Community Infrastructure
Levy; a Liability Notice will be sent to all known contacts including the applicant and the agent.
Before you commence any works please read the Liability Notice and comply with its contents
as otherwise you may be subjected to penalty charges. Further information including eligibility
for relief and links to the relevant forms and to the Government’s CIL guidance, can be found
on the Brent website at www.brent.gov.uk/CIL.

2 The applicant is advised that with respect to Phase 1 (Block E only), the following conditions have
been discharged in relation to “Permission 1” (ref: 16/4174) and the development shall only be
carried out in accordance with the following discharged conditions unless permission is otherwise
agreed in writing by the LPA:

e Condition 9a (Site Investigation) discharged via application reference 18/4428

Condition 9b (Remediation Strategy) discharged via application reference 19/2275

Condition 11 (Construction Management Plan) discharged via application reference 18/4426

Condition 13 (Materials) discharged via application reference 19/0603

Condition 15 (Landscaping) discharged via application reference 19/2372

Condition 17 (external lighting) discharged via application reference 19/2438

Condition 19 (Drainage Strategy) discharged via application reference 18/4848

Condition 21 (Vehicular Crossover)) discharged via application reference 19/0244

Condition 24 (Delivery & Servicing Plan) discharged via application reference 19/2350

Condition 29 (Tree Protection) discharged via application reference 19/0410

3 Given the age of the buildings to be demolished it is possible that asbestos may be present. The
applicant is reminded of hazards caused by asbestos materials especially during demolition and
removal works and attention is drawn to your duties under the Control of Asbestos Regulations and
must ensure that a qualified asbestos contractor is employed to remove all asbestos and
asbestos-containing materials and arrange for the appropriate disposal of such materials.

4 The applicant is advised to notify the Council's Highways and Infrastructure Service of the intention to
commence works prior to commencement and include photographs showing the condition of
highway along the site boundaries. The Highways and Infrastructure Service will require that any
damage to the adopted highway associated with the works is made good at the expense of the
developer.

5 Brent Council supports the payment of the London Living Wage to all employees within the Borough.
The developer, constructor and end occupiers of the building are strongly encouraged to pay the
London Living Wage to all employees associated with the construction and end use of development.

6 The Council recommends that the maximum standards for fire safety are achieved within the

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 17 of 18

Page 35



development.

7 The applicant is reminded that nesting birds are protected under the Wildlife & Countryside Act, 1981
(as amended). All buildings and areas of trees, hedges, scrub or similar vegetation where birds may
nest which are to be removed as part of the development approved, should only be cleared outside of
the bird-nesting season (March - August inclusive) or if clearance during the bird-nesting season
cannot reasonably be avoided, a suitably qualified ecologist must check the buildings and vegetation
to be removed immediately prior to clearance and advise whether nesting birds are present.

8 The applicant is reminded to ensure that the appropriate Licenses have been granted for food and
alcohol.
9 The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0800 009 3921 to discuss the

details of the piling method statement.

DocFDN
Document Imaged Ref: 19/3259 Page 18 of 18

Page 36



Agenda Item 7

(‘3 Brent

APPOINTMENTS TO SUB COMMITTEES & OUTSIDE BODIES

1. Proposed Appointments to the General Purposes Sub-Committees
for the 2021-2022 Municipal Year

BRENT PENSION BOARD

Due to an existing vacancy for an employer (Non Brent Council) member on the Pension Board
Finance have recently undertaken a recruitment process in order to fill the position.

The position was advertised to all employers in May 2021 in order to seek expressions of interest for
the role from any individuals who may be interested. As a result two expressions of interest were
received and discussions were held with both individuals in June 2021 to order to provide more
information on the role.

An update on the recruitment process was provided to the Pension Board. Both individuals who had
expressed an interest in the role were then interviewed in August 21. The Interview Panel consisted
of the Independent Chair of the Pension Board, Deputy Director of Finance and Senior Finance
Analyst.

Following the recruitment process, the Interview Panel have agreed to recommend the following
applicant for appointment - Sunil Gandhi from Wembley Multi Academy Trust

Recommendation:

On the basis of the recruitment process undertaken, General Purposes Committee is asked to
approve the appointment of Sunil Gandhi (Wembley Multi Academy Trust) to fill the vacancy on the
Pension Board of an Employer (Non Brent Council) Member for a two year term of office.

FULL MEMBERS:

DAVID EWART (C) INDEPENDENT CHAIR

CRANE LABOUR

KABIR LABOUR

CHRIS BALA PENSION SCHEME MEMBER

BOLA GEORGE TRADE UNION (UNISON) MEMBER

ROBERT WHEELER TRADE UNION (GMB) MEMBER

SUNIL GANDHI EMPLOYER MEMBER (NON-BRENT COUNCIL)

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS:

No provision is included within the Boards Terms of Reference for substitute members.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Stopping Up Order - Granville Road. (Peel Precinct Site).
	06a. Appendix A -  Stopping Up Order
	Background Paper - Planning Decision Notice

	7 Appointments to Sub-Committees / Outside Bodies

